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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED  

 
 

Plaintiff has  alleged the following based upon the investigation of Plaintiff=s  counsel, 

which included a review of United States  Secur ities  and Exchange Commiss ion (ASEC@) filings  by CMS 

Energy Corporation (ACMS@) and Consumers  Energy Company (AConsumers@) (together  CMS and 

Consumers  shall hereinafter  be refer red to as  ACMS@ or  the ACompany@), as  well as  regulatory filings  

and repor ts , secur ities  analys ts  repor ts  and advisor ies  about the Company, press  releases  and other  

public s tatements  issued by the Company, and media repor ts  about the Company, and Plaintiff believes  

that substantial additional evidentiary suppor t will exis t for  the allegations  set for th herein after  a 

reasonable oppor tunity for  discovery. 

NATURE OF THE ACTION  

1. This  is  a federal class  action on behalf of purchasers  of the secur ities  of CMS between 

August 3 , 2000  to May 10 , 2002, inclusive (the AClass  Per iod@), seeking to pursue remedies  under  the 

Secur ities  Exchange Act of 1934 (the AExchange Act@). 
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JURIS DICTION AND VENUE 

2. The claims asser ted herein ar ise under  and pursuant to Sections  10 (b) and 20 (a) of the 

Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. ''  78j(b) and 78t(a)] and Rule 10 b-5 promulgated thereunder  by the SEC [17 

C.F.R. '  240.10b-5]. 

3 . This  Cour t has  jur isdiction over  the subject matter  of this  action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

''  1331 and 1337, and Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. '  78aa].  

4. Venue is  proper  in this  Dis tr ict pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act and 28 

U.S.C. '  1391(b). Many of the acts  charged herein, including the preparation and dissemination of 

mater ially false and mis leading information, occurred in substantial par t in this  Dis tr ict and CMS 

conducts  bus iness  in this  Dis tr ict. 

5. In connection with the acts  alleged in this  complaint, Defendants , directly or  indirectly, 

used the means  and ins trumentalities  of inters tate commerce, including, but not limited to, the mails , 

inters tate telephone communications  and the facilities  of the national secur ities  markets . 

PARTIES  

6. Plaintiff Peter  L. Knepell, Trus tee for  the Peter  L. Knepell Pens ion Fund, as  set for th in 

the accompanying cer tification, incorporated by reference herein, purchased the common s tock of CMS 

at ar tificially inflated pr ices  dur ing the Class  Per iod and has  been damaged thereby. 

7. Defendant CMS is  a corporation organized under  the laws of Michigan with its  principal 

executive offices  located in Dearborn, Michigan. In its  recent press  releases  CMS descr ibes  itself as  

follows: ACMS Energy, which has  85 percent of its  assets  in the United States , owns  and operates  an 

electr ic and natural gas  dis tr ibution company with 1.7 million electr ic customers  and 1.6 million gas  

customers; a 15,000  mile natural gas  pipeline system and associated s torage facilities ; interes t in the 

nation's  largest LNG import facility; approximately 8,000  megawatts  of power plants; a midstream 

natural gas  gather ing and processing company with 700  million cubic feet per  day of capacity; an oil 
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and gas  exploration and production company with s ignificant domestic gas  reserves; and a leading 

energy marketing, trading and services  company marketing 750  billion cubic feet of natural gas  and 31 

million megawatt-hours  of electr icity annually.@  

8. Defendant William T. McCormick, Jr . (AMcCormick@) is , and at all times  relevant to the 

allegations  raised herein was , CMS= Chairman of the Board of Directors  Chief Executive Officer  and a 

Director , and, until May 2001, President of CMS. 

9. Defendant David W. Joos  (AJoos@) is , and from May 2001 was, CMS= President and Chief 

Operating Officer  and a Director . 

10. Defendant Alan M. Wright (AWright@) is , and from May 2001 was, CMS= Executive Vice 

Pres ident, Chief Financial Officer  and Chief Adminis trative Officer . Prior  to May 2001, Defendant Wright 

was CMS= Vice Pres ident and Chief Financial Officer . At all times  relevant to the allegations  raised 

herein, Defendant Wright was  s igned each of CMS= filings  with the SEC as  CMS= pr incipal financial 

officer .  

11. Defendants  McCormick, Joos  and Wright, together , are refer red to herein as  the 

AIndividual Defendants .@ 

12. During the Class  Per iod, the Individual Defendants , as  senior  executive officers  and 

directors  of CMS were pr ivy to confidential and proprietary information concerning CMS, its  operations , 

finances , financial condition, present and future bus iness  prospects. The Individual Defendants also had 

access  to mater ial adverse non-public information concerning CMS, as  discussed in detail below. 

Because of their  pos itions  with CMS, the Individual Defendants  had access  to non-public information 

about its  bus iness , finances, products , markets  and present and future business  prospects  via access  to 

internal corporate documents , conversations  and connections  with other  corporate officers  and 

employees , attendance at management and board of directors  meetings  and committees  thereof and via 

repor ts  and other  information provided to them in connection therewith. Because of their  possess ion of 
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such information, the Individual Defendants  knew or  reckless ly disregarded the fact that adverse facts  

specified herein had not been disclosed to, and were being concealed from, the inves ting public. 

13. The Individual Defendants  are liable as  direct par ticipants  in, and a co-conspirator  with 

respect to the wrongs  complained of herein. In addition, the Individual Defendants , by reason of their  

s tatus  as  senior  executive officers  and a director  were Acontrolling persons@ within the meaning of 

Section 20  of the Exchange Act and had the power  and influence to cause the Company to engage in the 

unlawful conduct complained of herein. Because of their  pos itions  of control, the Individual Defendants  

were able to and did, directly or  indirectly, control the conduct of CMS= bus iness . 

14. The Individual Defendants , because of their  pos itions  with the Company, controlled 

and/ or  possessed the author ity to control the contents  of its  repor ts , press  releases  and presentations  

to secur ities  analys ts  and through them, to the inves ting public. The Individual Defendants  were 

provided with copies  of the Company's  reports  and press  releases  alleged herein to be misleading, pr ior  

to or  shor tly after  their  issuance and had the ability and oppor tunity to prevent their  issuance or  cause 

them to be corrected. Thus , the Individual Defendants  had the oppor tunity to commit the fraudulent acts 

alleged herein. 

15. As senior  executive officers  and/ or  directors  and controlling persons  of a publicly-traded 

company whose common s tock and other  secur ities  were, and are, regis tered with the SEC pursuant to 

the Exchange Act, and were and are traded on the New York Stock Exchange (ANYSE@) and governed by 

the federal secur ities  laws, the Individual Defendants  had a duty to disseminate promptly accurate and 

truthful information with respect to CMS= financial condition and performance, growth, operations , 

financial s tatements , bus iness , products , markets , management, earnings  and present and future 

bus iness  prospects , to correct any previously issued s tatements  that had become mater ially misleading 

or  untrue, so that the market pr ice of CMS= common s tock would be based upon truthful and accurate 

information. The Individual Defendants  misrepresentations  and omiss ions  dur ing the Class  Per iod 
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violated these specific requirements  and obligations . 

16. The Individual Defendants  are liable as  par ticipants  in a fraudulent scheme and course 

of conduct that operated as  a fraud or  deceit on purchasers  of CMS common s tock by disseminating 

mater ially false and mis leading s tatements  and/ or  concealing mater ial adverse facts . The scheme (i) 

deceived the investing public regarding CMS= bus iness , operations  and management and the intr ins ic 

value of CMS common s tock, (ii) permitted CMS to engage in two secondary s tock offer ings , pursuant to 

which CMS sold more than 21 million shares  of common s tock valued at $400 .6 million, (iii) permitted 

CMS to file shelf regis tration s tatements  with the SEC, pursuant to which CMS regis tered secur ities  

valued at $2.7 billion, (iv) permitted Consumers  to sell secur itization bonds  valued at $469 billion, (v) 

permitted CMS to obtain financing of $1.6 billion to complete a s trategic power  and desalination project 

in the Middle East, and (vi) caused Plaintiff and members  of the Class  to purchase CMS= common s tock 

and other  secur ities  at ar tificially inflated pr ices . 

PLAINTIFF'S  CLAS S  ACTION ALLEGATIONS  

17. Plaintiff br ings  this  action as  a class  action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 

23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class , cons is ting of all those who purchased the secur ities  of CMS 

between August 3 , 2000  to May 10 , 2002, inclusive (the AClass  Per iod@) and who were damaged 

thereby. Excluded from the Class  are Defendants , the officers  and directors  of the Company, at all 

relevant times, members  of their  immediate families  and their  legal representatives , heir s , successors  

or  ass igns  and any entity in which Defendants  have or  had a controlling interes t. 

18. The members of the Class  are so numerous that joinder  of all members is  impracticable. 

Throughout the Class  Per iod, CMS common shares  and other  secur ities  were actively traded on the 

NYSE. While the exact number  of Class  members  is  unknown to Plaintiff at this  time and can only be 

ascer tained through appropr iate discovery, Plaintiff believes  that there are hundreds  or  thousands  of 

members  in the proposed Class . Record owners  and other  members  of the Class  may be identified from 
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records  maintained by CMS or  its  transfer  agent and may be notified of the pendency of this  action by 

mail, us ing the form of notice s imilar  to that cus tomarily used in secur ities  class  actions . 

19. Plaintiff's  claims are typical of the claims of the members  of the Class  as  all members  of 

the Class  are s imilar ly affected by Defendants ' wrongful conduct in violation of federal law that is  

complained of herein. 

20. Plaintiff will fair ly and adequately protect the interes ts  of the members  of the Class  and 

has  retained counsel competent and exper ienced in class  and secur ities  litigation.  

21. Common ques tions  of law and fact exis t as  to all members  of the Class and predominate 

over  any ques tions  solely affecting individual members  of the Class . Among the ques tions  of law and 

fact common to the Class  are: (a) whether  the federal secur ities  laws were violated by Defendants ' acts  

as  alleged herein; (b) whether  s tatements  made by Defendants  to the inves ting public dur ing the Class  

Per iod misrepresented mater ial facts  about the bus iness  and operations  of CMS; and (c) to what extent 

the members  of the Class  have sus tained damages  and the proper  measure of damages . 

22. A class  action is  super ior  to all other  available methods  for  the fair  and efficient 

adjudication of this  controversy s ince joinder  of all members  is  impracticable. Fur thermore, as  the 

damages suffered by individual Class  members  may be relatively small, the expense and burden of 

individual litigation make it imposs ible for  members  of the Class  to individually redress  the wrongs  

done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this  action as  a class  action. 

S UBS TANTIVE ALLEGATIONS  

23. The Class  Per iod begins  on August 3 , 2000 . On that date, CMS released its  financial 

results  for  second quar ter  ended June 30 , 20 0 0 . The press  release s tated, in par t:  

Second quar ter  operating revenue totaled $1.60  billion, up 20  percent 

from $1.33 billion in the second quar ter  of 1999. For  the fir s t s ix 

months  of 2000 , consolidated net income totaled $161 million, or  $1.42 

per  diluted share, compared to $173 million, or  $1.48 per  diluted share, 

for  the same per iod in 1999. Operating revenue for  the firs t half of 

2000  totaled $3.43 billion, up 19 percent from $2.87 billion in the firs t 
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half of 1999, pr imarily reflecting ownership of the CMS Panhandle 

Companies  for  the entire fir s t half of 2000  versus  only the second 

quar ter  of 1999 and continued revenue growth in CMS Energy's  

divers ified energy bus inesses . 

 

24. On October  11, 2000 , CMS filed its  second quar ter  ended June 30 , 2000  Form 10-Q with 

the SEC, incorporating the financial results  released by CMS on August 3 , 2000 . CMS repor ted 

revenues  of $391 million from its  energy marketing and trading business  and included the following 

additional disclosure:  

Marketing, Services  and Trading Results  of Operations   

 

Pretax Operating Income:  Pretax operating earnings  for  the three 

months  ended June 30 , 2000  increased $4 million from the comparable 

per iod in 1999. The increase pr imarily reflects  increased earnings from 

wholesale gas  activities , including mark-to- market adjus tments  on 

trading contracts , which benefitted from natural gas  market pr ice 

increases , par tially offset by reduced margins  from wholesale electr ic 

activities . Pretax operating income for  the s ix months  ended June 30 , 

2000  increased $4 million from the comparable per iod in 1999 as  a 

result of increased wholesale gas  earnings  due to increases  in natural 

gas  market pr ices , increased LNG sales  and earnings  benefits  from an 

energy management services  acquis ition made in late 1999, par tially 

offset by reduced margins  from wholesale electr ic activities . 

* * * 

CMS Ener gy  intends  to us e  i t s  m ar k e t ing ,  s e r v ice s  and 

t r ading  bus ines s  to im pr ov e  the  r e tur n on CMS Ener gy =s  other 

bus ine s s  as s e t s . One  m e thod to achie v e  this  goal  is  to us e  

m ark e t ing and trading to enhance  per form ance  of as s e ts ,  s uch 

as  gas  r e s e r v e s  and pow e r  p lants . Other  s trategies  include 

expanding CMS Energy=s  indus tr ial and commercial energy services  to 

enhance our  commodity marketing business , us ing CMS Energy=s  gas  
production as  a hedge to commodity r isk in other  areas  of our  

bus iness , and developing r isk management products  that address  

cus tomer  needs . 

 

25. The 2000  Second Quarter  Form 10-Q also included the following representations : 

These Condensed Notes  and their  related Consolidated Financial 

Statements  should be read along with the Consolidated Financial 

Statements  and Notes  contained in the 1999 Form 10 -K of CMS Energy, 

which includes  the Repor ts  of Independent Public Accountants . Cer tain 

pr ior  year  amounts  have been reclass ified to conform with the 

presentation in the cur rent year . In the opinion of management, the 
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unaudited information herein reflects  all adjus tments  necessary to 

assure the fair  presentation of financial pos ition, results  of operations  

and cash flows for  the per iods  presented. 

 

26. On October  13, 2000 , CMS announced that it Aanticipates  that its  third quarter  earnings, 

to be released on October  26, 2000 , will be 10 -15% higher  than the Company's  previous  guidance of 

$0 .40  per  share in sus tainable earnings . This  im pr ov em ent  is  due  to fav or able  pow er  

t rans act ions  and cos t  r educt ions .@ 

27. On October  17, 2000 , CMS announced it had sold 11 million shares  of common stock in a 

secondary s tock offer ing, netting proceeds  of approximately $305 million, Awhich will be used to repay 

debt.@ 

28. On October  26, 2000 , CMS released its  financial results  for  third quar ter  ended 

September  30 , 2000 . The press  release s tated, in par t:  

Third quar ter  operating revenue totaled $2.40  billion, up 63 percent 

from $1.47 billion in the third quar ter  of 1999, due  m ainly  to 

incr e as e d  low e r -m ar g in ener gy  m ar k e t ing  r ev enues .  

 

For  the fir s t nine months  of 20 0 0 , earnings  were $1.93  per  share on 

consolidated net income of $216 million, compared to earnings  of $2.25 

per  share on consolidated net income of $256 million for  the same 

per iod in 1999. This  year 's  results  include 17 cents  per  share of 

earnings  from asset sales , which the Company does  not expect to 

sus tain in future years . Operating revenue for  the fir s t nine months  of 

2000  totaled $5.82 billion, up 34 percent from $4.34 billion in the firs t 

nine months  of 1999, pr im ar ily  r e flect ing  increas ed oil  and gas ,  

p ipe l ine  and low e r -m ar gin ener gy  m ar k e t ing  r ev enue s . 

 

29. On November  11, 2000 , CMS filed its  third quarter  ended September 30 , 2000  Form 10-Q 

with the SEC, incorporating the financial results  released by CMS on October  26, 2000 . CMS repor ted 

revenues  of $1.034 billion from its  energy marketing and trading business  and included the following 

additional disclosure: 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 



 

 9 

PRETAX OPERATING INCOME: Pretax operating income for  the three 

months  ended September  30 , 2000  decreased $2 million from the 

comparable per iod in 1999. The decrease pr imarily reflects  decreased 

earnings  from power  trading activities , pr imarily due to cooler  than 

normal summer weather  in Michigan, par tially offset by increased 

earnings  from wholesale gas  activities , which benefitted from natural 

gas  market pr ice increases . The volumes  of marketed natural gas  and 

power traded increased 72 percent and over 1,000  percent, respectively. 

Pretax operating income for  the nine months ended September 30 , 2000  

increased $2 million from the comparable per iod in 1999 as  a result of 

increased wholesale gas  earnings  due to captur ing gains  from natural 

gas  pr ice market volatility, increased LNG sales  and earnings  benefits  

from an energy management services  acquis ition made in late 1999. 

The  v olum es  of m ar k e ted  natur al  gas  and pow er  t r aded 

increas ed 6 5  percent  and 5 4 6  percent ,  r e s pect iv e ly . Partially 

offsetting these increases  were decreased earnings  from power  trading 

activities , pr imar ily due to cooler  than normal summer weather  in 

Michigan. 

* * * 

OUTLOOK 

As the deregulation and pr ivatization of the energy industry takes place 

in global energy markets , CMS Energy has  pos itioned itself to be a 

leading regional divers ified energy company developing energy facilities 

and marketing energy-related services  in the United States  and selected 

world growth markets . The key elements  of the s trategy to achieve this  

objective are as  follows: 

 

-  Effectively implement the Michigan electr ic utility 

res tructur ing legis lation and gas  utility customer  choice program; 

 

-  Use the natural gas  pipeline bus iness  for  growth 

oppor tunities  across  other  CMS Energy bus inesses ; 

 

-  Expand the range of energy-related services ; 

 

-  Expand CMS Energy's  presence in select high -growth 

international markets  through the divers ified energy bus ines ses ; 

 

-  Grow  the  m ark e t ing ,  s e rv ice s  and trading  

act iv i t ie s  to opt im iz e  and lev erage  gas  and e lectr ic  as s e ts  in 

the  United State s ; and 

 

-  Continued management of the asset por tfolio. 

 

30 . The 2000  Second Quarter  Form 10-Q also included the following representations : 

These Condensed Notes  and their  related Consolidated Financial 

Statements  should be read along with the Consolidated Financial 
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Statements  and Notes  contained in the 1999 Form 10 -K of CMS Energy, 

which includes  the Repor ts  of Independent Public Accountants . Cer tain 

pr ior  year  amounts  have been reclass ified to conform with the 

presentation in the current year . In the opinion of management, the 

unaudited information herein reflects  all adjus tments  necessary to 

assure the fair  presentation of financial pos ition, results  of operations  

and cash flows for  the per iods  presented. 

 

31. On December  22, 2000 , CMS announced that it had Afiled with the Secur ities  and 

Exchange Commission an S-3 Registration Statement for  $700  million of debt and equity secur ities  that 

may be issued only upon the convers ion of outs tanding conver tible prefer red secur ities . CMS Energy 

will receive no cash proceeds  from these issuances  and will incur  no additional liabilities . On Dec. 15, 

2000 , CMS Energy filed with the Securities  and Exchange  Commiss ion another  S-3  Regis tration 

Statement for  the issuance of up to $2 billion of debt and equity secur ities . This  shelf regis tration 

s tatement is  intended to provide flexibility for  CMS Energy to issue a wide range of debt, prefer red and 

common equity secur ities  from time to time in the future.@ Both Regis tration Statements  on Form S-3 

incorporated by reference the Quar ter ly Repor ts  on Form 10 -Q for  the second and third quar ters  of 

2000. 

32. On January 24, 2001, CMS released its  financial results  for  the four th quar ter  and year  

ended December  31, 2000 . The press  release s tated, in par t: 

Four th quar ter  operating revenue totaled $3.19 billion, compared to 

$1.77 billion in the four th quar ter  of 1999. Consolidated operating 

revenue for  2000  grew 47 percent to $9 .0  billion, from $6.1 billion 

in 1999, due  large ly  to s ignificant ly  increas ed low er -m argin 

energy  m ark e t ing  and trading  trans act ions . 

* * * 

Significant developments  for  CMS Energy in 2000  included: 

 

completing approximately $1.2 billion of a combination of non-strategic 

asset sales  and project debt removal from the balance sheet; 

 

State of Michigan enactment of comprehensive electr ic res tructur ing 

legis lation which removed major  financial uncer tainties  and provided 

for  full recovery of s tranded costs  and author ization for  secur itization 
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financing to fund a five percent res idential electr ic rate reduction; 

 

receiving 55 cargoes  of Liquefied Natural Gas  (LNG) at its  CMS 

Trunkline LNG Lake Char les  regasification facility with attendant gas  

marketing and transportation revenues , more than doubling the 27 LNG 

cargoes received in 1999;  

 

recording year-end proved oil and gas  reserves  of 235 million net 

equivalent barrels , despite the sale of 53  million net equivalent barrels  

of its  reserves  in Michigan and Ecuador  and production of 10  million 

barrels  dur ing the year  from 1999 's  reserves  of 248  million net 

equivalent bar rels . Exploration and development successes  in west 

Texas , Wyoming and Equator ial Guinea par tially offset the sale of 

reserves  and production;  

 

increas ing energy marketing and trading operating earnings  by more 

than three times , to $14 million in 2000  from $4 million in 1999, as  

the  energy  m ark e t ing unit  m ade  the  trans it ion from  a re tail  to 

w holes ale  bus ines s ,  w ith 6 14  bil l ion cubic  fee t  of natural gas  

m ark e ted,  an increas e  of 3 1 percent ,  and 3 7 ,7 8 1 g igaw at t -

hours  of e lectr icity  m ark e te d,  up 9 19  percent ,  in 2 0 0 0 ; 

 

33. On February 23, 2001, CMS announced that it had sold ten million shares  of common 

s tock pursuant to a secondary offer ing, netting proceeds  of approximately $295.6 million, A which will 

be used to repay debt.@ 

34. On March 23, 2001, CMS filed its  Annual Report on Form 10-K for  the year  ended 

December  31, 2000 , incorporating the financial results  released by CMS on January 24, 2001. CMS 

reported revenues  of $3.3  billion for  the year  ended December  31, 2000  from its  energy marketing and 

trading business  and included the following additional disclosure: 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING 

 

CMS MST, formed in 1996 and the surviving entity of a 1997 merger  

with CMS Gas Marketing Company formed in 1987, provides  gas , oil, 

and electr ic marketing, r isk management and energy management 

services  to industr ial, commercial, utility and municipal energy users  

throughout the United States  and abroad. CMS MST has  grown 

dramatically s ince its  inception. CMS Energy intends to use CMS MST to 
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enhance per formance of CMS Energy assets , such as  gas  reserves  and 

power  plants . CMS MST markets  approximately 614 bcf of natural gas , 

37,781 GWh of electr icity, 31 million barrels  of crude oil and 9  million 

barrels  of natural gas  liquids . From 1997 through 2000 , CMS MST also 

performed 350  energy management services  projects . At December  31, 

2000 , CMS MST had more than 10 ,611 customers , transported gas  on 

more than 40  gas  pipelines  and was active in 39 s tates  and Canada and 

Brazil. In 2 0 0 0 ,  CMS MST's  operat ing  r ev enue  w as  $ 3 .3  

bi l l ion. 

* * * 

 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 

PRETAX OPERATING INCOME: For  the year  2000 , pretax operating 

income increased $10  million from the comparable per iod in 1999. The 

increase reflects  increased earnings  from wholesale gas  trading, 

increased LNG sales , and earnings  from an energy management 

services  bus iness  acquired in late 1999. The  v olum es  of m ar k e ted  

natural gas  and pow er  traded increas ed 3 1 percent  and 9 19  

per cent ,  r e s pect iv e ly . Partially offsetting these increases were lower 

power  trading margins , pr imarily due to cooler  than normal summer 

weather  in Michigan, and increased operating expenses as  the business  

continues to expand its  trading and marketing activities  and increase its  

cus tomer  base. For  the year  1999, pretax operating income was 

unchanged from the comparable per iod in 1998. Increased earnings  

from retail gas  sales , wholesale gas  pr ice volatility and a 1999 

acquis ition of an energy management services  bus iness  were offset by 

costs  related to market development activities . 

 

35. On March 28, 2001, CMS announced the successful pr icing of $350  million of 8.5 

percent senior  notes , due 20 11, proceeds  of which were to be sued to repay debt.  

36. On April 30 , 2001, CMS released its  financial results  for  the firs t quar ter  ended March 

31, 2001. The press  release s tated, in par t: 

Firs t quar ter  operating revenue totaled $4.13 billion, up 126 percent 

from $1.83 billion in the firs t quar ter  of 2000 , due  large ly  to 

s ignificant ly  increas ed low er -m argin energy  m ark e t ing  and 

trading  trans act ions . 

 

37. On May 11, 2001, CMS filed its  firs t quarter  ended March 31, 2001 Form 10-Q with the 

SEC, incorporating the financial results  released by CMS on April 30 , 2001. CMS  repor ted revenues  of 

$2.344 billion from its  energy marketing and trading business  and included the following additional 
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disclosure: 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 

PRETAX OPERATING INCOME: For  the three months  ended March 31, 

2001, pretax operating income increased $4 million (133 percent) from 

the comparable per iod in 2000 . The increase reflects  additional 

earnings  from wholesale gas  trading and increased LNG sales . T he  

phy s ical v olum es  of m ark e ted and m anaged natural gas  and 

pow er  t raded increas ed 17  percent  and 1,3 8 3  percent ,  

r e s pect iv e ly ,  due  large ly  to s ignificant ly  increas ed low er -

m argin energy  m ark e t ing  and trading  trans act ions . 

* * * 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING OUTLOOK: CMS Energy intends 

to use its  marketing, services  and trading bus iness  to focus  on 

wholesale cus tomers  such as  municipals , cooperatives  and large 

indus tr ial cus tomers  in the central United States  where CMS Energy's  

exis ting assets  are concentrated. CMS Energy's  marketing, services and 

trading business  also intends  to contract for  use of s ignificant gas  

transportation and s torage assets  in the central United States  to provide 

a platform for  wholesale marketing, trading, and physical arbitrage. 

CMS Energy also seeks to continue developing importing and marketing 

opportunities  for  LNG. CMS Energy plans  to capitalize on favorable 

market conditions  for  energy performance contracting through 

expanding its  services  bus iness  in selected markets . 

 

38. The 2001 firs t quarter  Form 10-Q also included the following representations : 

These inter im Consolidated Financial Statements  have been prepared by 

CMS Energy and reviewed by the independent public accountant in 

accordance with SEC rules  and regulations . As  such, cer tain 

information and footnote disclosures  normally included in financial 

s tatements  prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

pr inciples  have been condensed or  omitted. Cer tain pr ior  year  amounts  

have been reclass ified to conform to the presentation in the cur rent 

year . In management's  opinion, the unaudited information contained in 

this  repor t reflects  all adjus tments  necessary to assure the fair  

presentation of financial pos ition, results  of operations  and cash flows 

for  the per iods  presented. The Condensed Notes  to Consolidated 

Financial Statements  and the related Consolidated Financial Statements  

should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial 

Statements  and Notes  to Consolidated Financial Statements  contained in 

CMS Energy's  Form 10-K for  the year  ended December  31, 2000 , which 

includes  the Repor ts  of Independent Public Accountants . Due to the 

seasonal nature of CMS Energy's  operations , the results  as  presented 

for  this  inter im per iod are not necessar ily indicative of results  to be 

achieved for  the fiscal year . 
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39. On August 1, 2001, CMS announced its  financial results  for  the second quar ter  ended 

June 30 , 20 0 1. The press  release s tated, in par t: 

Second quar ter  operating revenue totaled $4.4 billion, up 175 percent 

from $1.6 billion in the second quar ter  of 2000 ,  due  large ly  to 

s ignificant ly  increas ed low er -m argin energy  m ark e t ing  and 

trading  trans act ions . 

 

40. On August 14, 2001, CMS filed its  second quar ter  ended June 30 , 2001 Form 10-Q with 

the SEC, incorporating the financial results  released by CMS on August 1, 2001. CMS reported revenues 

of $3.089 billion from its  energy marketing and trading business  for  the quar ter , and included the 

following additional disclosure: 

GENERAL OUTLOOK 

 

CMS Energy's  vis ion is  to be an integrated energy company with a 

s trong asset base, supplemented with an active marketing, services  and 

trading capability. CMS Energy intends to integrate the skills  and assets  

of its  bus iness  units  to obtain optimal returns  and to provide expansion 

oppor tunities  for  its  multiple exis ting bus inesses . 

* * * 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING OUTLOOK: CMS Energy intends 

to use its  marketing, services  and trading bus iness  to focus  on 

wholesale cus tomers  such as  municipals , cooperatives  and large 

industr ial cus tomers  in the central United States  where CMS Energy's  

exis ting assets  are concentrated. CMS Energy's  marketing, services  and 

trading business  also intends  to contract for  use of s ignificant gas  

transpor tation and s torage assets  in the central United States to provide 

a platform for  wholesale marketing, trading, and physical arbitrage. 

CMS Energy also seeks to continue developing importing and marketing 

opportunities  for  LNG. CMS Energy plans  to capitalize on favorable 

market conditions  for  energy pe rformance contracting through 

expanding its  services  bus iness  in selected markets . 

 

41. The second quar ter  2001 Form 10-Q also included the following representations : 

These inter im Consolidated Financial Statements  have been prepared by 

CMS Energy and reviewed by the independent public accountant in 

accordance with SEC rules  and regulations . As  such, cer tain 

information and footnote disclosures  normally included in financial 

s tatements  prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

pr inciples  have been condensed or  omitted. Cer tain pr ior  year  amounts  

have been reclass ified to conform to the presentation in the cur rent 

year . In management's  opinion, the unaudited information contained in 
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this  repor t reflects  all adjus tments  necessary to assure the fair  

presentation of financial pos ition, results  of operations  and cash flows 

for  the per iods  presented. The Condensed Notes  to Consolidated 

Financial Statements  and the related Consolidated Financial Statements  

should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial 

Statements  and Notes  to Consolidated Financial Statements  contained in 

CMS Energy's  Form 10-K for  the year  ended December  31, 2000 , which 

includes  the Repor ts  of Independent Public Accountants . Due to the 

seasonal nature of CMS Energy's  operations , the results  as  presented 

for  this  inter im per iod are not necessar ily indicative of results  to be 

achieved for  the fiscal year . 

 

42. On October  26, 2001, CMS announced its  financial results  for  the third quar ter  ended 

September 30 , 2001. The press  release s tated, in par t: 

Third quarter  operating revenue totaled $3.0  billion, up 29 percent from 

$2.32 billion in the third quar ter  of 2000 , due  large ly  to increas ed 

low er  m argin energy  m ark e t ing  and trading  trans act ions . 
* * * 

Operating revenue in the firs t nine months  of 2001 totaled $11.47 billion 

compared to $5.62 billion in the firs t nine months  of 2000 , due  to 

increas ed low er  m argin energy  m ark e t ing  and trading  

t r ans act ions . 

 

43. On November  8, 2001, CMS announced that Consumers  had received $469 million of 

gross  proceeds  from the sale of secur itization bonds , rated tr iple-A, and issued in s ix ser ies  with 

duration of from one to 13 years  with an average yield of 5.305 percent. Proceeds  were to be used to 

reduce CMS= debt. 

44. On November  14, 2001, CMS filed its  third quar ter  ended September  30 , 2001 10-Q with 

the SEC, incorporating the financial results  released by CMS on October  26, 2001. CMS repor ted 

revenues  of $1.743 billion from its  energy marketing and trading business for  the quarter , and included 

the following additional disclosure: 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 

PRETAX OPERATING INCOME: For  the three months  ended September  

30 , 2001, pretax operating income increased $22 million from the 

comparable per iod in 2000 . The increase reflects  higher  gas  (159 bcf vs  

119 CMS-6 bcf) and electr ic (21.4 billion kWh vs  12.6 billion kWh) 

volumes  and improved margins , the increased net value of long-term 
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power  contracts  and wholesale power  trading activity, net of reserves . 

For  the nine months  ended September  30 , 2001, pretax operating 

income increased $76 million from the comparable per iod in 2000 . The 

increase reflects  higher  gas  (657 bcf vs  355 bcf) and electr ic (69.9 

billion kWh vs  15.6 kWh) volumes and gas  margins , par tially offset by 

lower  electr ic margins , the execution of long-term power sales contracts 

and increased wholesale gas  and power  trading, net of reserves . Due to 

the var iable and competitive nature of energy trading, results  for  

inter im per iods  are not necessar ily indicative of results  to be achieved 

for  the fiscal year . 
* * * 

OUTLOOK 

 

CMS Energy's  vis ion is  to be an integrated energy company with a 

s trong asset base, supplemented with an active marketing, services and 

trading capability. CMS Energy intends to integrate the skills  and assets  

of its  bus iness  units  to obtain optimal returns  and to provide expansion 

oppor tunities  for  its  multiple exis ting bus inesses . To achieve this  

vis ion, CMS Energy announced in October  2001, s ignificant changes in 

its  bus iness  s trategy in order  to s trengthen its  balance sheet, provide 

more transparent and predictable future earnings , and lower  its  

business  r isk by focusing its  future business  growth pr imarily in North 

America. 

 

45. The 2001 third quar ter  Form 10-Q included the following additional representations : 

These inter im Consolidated Financial Statements  have been prepared by 

CMS Energy and reviewed by the independent public accountant in 

accordance with SEC rules  and regulations . As  such, cer tain 

information and footnote disclosures  normally included in financial 

s tatements  prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

pr inciples  have been condensed or  omitted. Cer tain pr ior  year  amounts  

have been reclass ified to conform to the presentation in the cur rent 

year . In management's  opinion, the unaudited information contained in 

this  repor t reflects  all adjus tments  necessary to assure the fair  

presentation of financial pos ition, results  of operations  and cash flows 

for  the per iods  presented. The Condensed Notes  to Consolidated 

Financial Statements  and the related Consolidated Financial Statements  

should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial 

Statements  and Notes  to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in 

CMS Energy's  Form 10-K for  the year  ended December  31, 2000 , which 

includes  the Repor ts  of Independent Public Accountants . Due to the 

seasonal nature of CMS Energy's  operations , the results  as  presented 

for  this  inter im per iod are not necessar ily indicative of results  to be 

achieved for  the fiscal year . 

 
46. On December  3 , 2001, CMS announced that it had closed a $1.635 billion limited 
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recourse project financing for  construction of a power  generation and water  desalination project in the 

United Arab Emirates . 

47. On January 7, 2002, CMS announced a revis ion of earnings es timates  for  fiscal 2001 of 

approximately 35 cents  per  share below previous  guidance, blaming Asignificantly warmer than normal 

four th quarter  weather  affecting its  Michigan gas dis tr ibution utility, lower gas  and electr ic sales  due to 

the economic s lowdown, additional electr ic generating plant maintenance costs  and increased electr ic 

dis tr ibution repair  costs  due to s torm damage.@ 

48. On February 4, 2002, CMS released its  financial results  for  the fourth quar ter  and year  

ended December  31, 2001. CMS did not highlight revenues  for  the quar ter , nor  emphasis  increased 

trading volume by its  power  marketing and service bus iness , as  it had for  the previous  five quar ters . 

The press  release s tated, in par t: 

Energy marketing, services  and trading operating income for  2001 was 

$71 million, up from $14 million in 2000 , due to increased long term 

power  sales  contracts  and wholesale gas  and power  trading activity. 

For  the four th quar ter , operating income for  the energy marketing, 

services  and trading bus iness  was  a loss  of $7 million, down from 

operating income of $12 million dur ing the same per iod las t year , due 

pr imar ily to lower  wholesale gas  trading revenues  and increased 

operating expenses , par tially offset by increased long-term power sales. 

 

49. On March 29, 2002, CMS filed its  Annual Report on Form 10-K for  the year  ended 

December  31, 2001, incorporating the financial results  released by CMS on February 4, 2002. CMS 

repor ted revenues  of $4 billion for  the year  ended December  31, 2001 from its  energy marketing and 

trading business  and included the following additional disclosure: 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING CMS MST provides gas, oil, and 

electr ic marketing, r isk management and energy management services  

to industr ial, commercial, utility and municipal energy users throughout 

the United States  and abroad. CMS MST has  grown dramatically s ince 

its  inception in 1996. CMS Energy intends  to use CMS MST to focus  on 

wholesale cus tomers  such as  municipals , cooperative electr ic 

companies and industr ial and commercial customers. In 2001, CMS MST 

marketed approximately 750  bcf of natural gas , 51,790  GWh of 

electr icity, 33 million barrels  of crude oil and 11 million barrels  of 
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natural gas  liquids  annually. From 1997 through 2001, CMS MST also 

performed 300  energy management services  projects . At December  31, 

2001, CMS MST had more than 10 ,300  customers , transported gas  on 

more than 40  gas  pipelines  and was active in most of the 50  s tates  and 

Canada. In 2001, CMS MST's  operating revenue was  $4.0  billion. 

* * * 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 

PRETAX OPERATING INCOME: For  the year  2001, pretax operating 

income increased $57 million (407 percent) from the comparable per iod 

in 2000 . The increase reflects  higher  gas  (750  bcf vs . 615 bcf) and 

electr ic (51,790  GWh vs . 37,781 Gwh) marketed volumes and average 

gas  margins , the mark-to-market value from or igination of long term 

power  contracts , net of reserves , and higher  earnings  of the energy 

management services  business , par tially offset by reduced net 

wholesale power  trading activity and higher  operating expenses . 

 

For  the year  2000 , pretax operating income increased $10  million from 

the comparable period in 1999. The increase reflects  increased earnings 

from wholesale gas  trading, increased LNG sales , and earnings from an 

energy management services  bus iness  acquired in late 1999. The 

volumes of marketed natural gas and power traded increased 31 percent 

and 919 percent, respectively. Par tially offsetting these increases  were 

lower  power  trading margins , pr imar ily due to cooler  than normal 

summer  weather  in Michigan, and increased operating expenses  as  the 

business  continues  to expand its  trading and marketing activities  and 

increase its  cus tomer  base. 
* * * 

MARKETING, SERVICES AND TRADING OUTLOOK: CMS Energy intends 

to use its  marketing, services  and trading bus iness  to focus  on 

cus tomers  such as  LDC's , municipals , cooperative electr ic companies , 

and industr ial and commercial businesses  in selected locations in North 

America. CMS Energy's  marketing and trading business  also intends  to 

contract for  use of s ignificant gas  transpor tation and s torage assets  as  

well as  energy and generating capacity in North America to provide a 

platform for  wholesale marketing, trading, and physical arbitrage. CMS 

Energy also seeks  to continue developing impor ting and marketing 

opportunities  for  LNG. CMS Energy plans  to capitalize on favorable 

market conditions  for  energy performance contracting by expanding its  

services  bus iness  in selected markets .  

 

Recent events  related to very large market makers  in the energy 

trading market have raised concerns  about liquidity in this  market. 

Management cannot predict what effect these events  may have on the 

liquidity of the trading markets  in the shor t-term, but believes  the 

markets  will be s table and grow over  the long term. 
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50 . On May 1, 2002, CMS announced its  financial results  for  the firs t quar ter  ended March 

31, 2002. The press  release s tated, in par t: 

Firs t quar ter  operating revenue totaled $2.5 billion, versus  $2.9  billion 

in the firs t quar ter  of 2001, due to decreased electr ic and natural gas  

utility sales  and natural gas  transmission revenues resulting from near  

record warm winter  weather  and continued weak economic conditions . 

 

51. Then, on May 9 , 2002, an ar ticle appeared in The Wall Street Journal, titled ADynegy 

Trades  Draw SEC Scrutiny@. The ar ticle s tated in per tinent par t as  follows: 

Dynegy las t fall conducted two pairs  of massive electr ic-power  trades  

that canceled each other  out,  in an apparent bid to gain bragging r ights  

as  the company was  seeking to take over  the dominant pos ition in 

online energy trading from Enron Corp., a move that led federal 

regulators  to open yet another  front in its  scrutiny of the company. 
* * * 

The Dynegy tradesCexecuted at precisely the same moment for  exactly 

the same priceCcanceled each other  out. As  a result, they didn=t yield 

profits  for  Dynegy or  its  trading par tner , a unit of CMS Energy Corp. of 

Dearborn, Mich. The transactions , valued internally by Dynegy at a 

combined $1.7 billion would have accounted for  13% of the total four th-

quar ter  value traded on Dynegydirect and more than half of the 

increase in trading values  between the third and four th quar ters  . . 

 . 

52. The same day, May 9 , 2002, CMS issued a press  release regarding its  trades  with 

Dynegy. 

CMS Energy Corporation announced that an ar ticle in today's  Wall 

Street Journal on energy trading transactions  in November  2001 

between its  energy marketing unit, CMS Marketing, Services  and 

Trading (CMS-MST) and Dynegy, Inc., incorrectly character ized the 

trades , which generated no profit or  loss , as  being initiated at the 

request of Dynegy. CMS Energy clar ified today that two November  15, 

2001 electr icity trades between CMS-MST and Dynegy were initiated by 

CMS-MST.  

 

CMS Energy did not record any revenue or  income to its  financial 

s tatements  as  a result of these trades . CMS Energy s topped engaging in 

such transactions  late las t year . 

 

53. The next day, May 10 , 2002, CMS announced that the SEC was conducting an informal 
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inquiry regarding its  Around-tr ip@ trading practices . The press  release s tated in per tinent par t as  

follows: 

CMS Energy Corporation announced today that the U.S. Secur ities  and 

Exchange Commission (SEC) s taff has  asked it to provide information in 

connection with an informal inquiry into s imultaneous  purchases  and 

sales  of electr icity with the same counterpar ties  at the same pr ice. 

These transactions , which involved no profit or  loss , are of the type 

which were the subject of recent press  repor ts .  

 

CMS Energy is  cooperating fully with the SEC in this  matter . 

 
54. In fact, CMS= s tatements  and misrepresentations  throughout the Class  Per iod in its  

press  releases  and other  repor ts  and its  financial s tatements  included in its  Annual Repor ts  on Form 

10-K and Quar ter ly Repor ts  on Form 10-Q for fiscal 2000  and 2001 were materially false and misleading 

in that they failed to disclose that the Company had ar tificially inflated its  revenues  by engaging in 

round-tr ip electr icity trades. Moreover , CMS= financial s tatements  violated GAAP and SEC rules  by 

including approximately $4.4 billion of revenues  in financial s tatements  from transactions  that lacked 

any economic substance in order  to manipulate the market and inves tors  into thinking that CMS was  

becoming a s ignificant, if not a major , player  in the power  marketing industry in the United States . 

55. On May 13, 2002, Reliant Resources , Inc. (AReliant@), a Texas  energy trading and 

services  company disclosed that it had engaged in Around tr ip trading@, which had boosted its  revenues 

by more than 10% during its  fiscal 1999, 2000  and 2001. Reliant identified CMS as the counter-party 

with which it had conducted the major ity of its  Around-tr ip@ trading.  

56. An ar ticle in the Houston Chronicle dated May 13, 2002, titled APhony trades  common?@ 

indicated that CMS was the par ty that had initiated the Around-tr ip@ trades  with Dynegy. The ar ticle 

s tated in per tinent par t as  follows: 

Last week, Dynegy and CMS confirmed that they did round tr ip trades  

with each other .  
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The deals  were done at CMS= r eques t, and Dynegy said one reason it 

wanted to conduct them was to tes t its  computer  sys tems for  handling 

large trades . 

 

57. On disclosure of the extent and the multiple counter -parties  of CMS= trading practices , 

CMS common stock fell from a high of $20 .06 on May 10 , 2002 to a low of $15.72 on May 13, 2002, or  

a s ingle-day decline of more than 21% on high volume, and down more than 45% from the Class  Per iod 

high. 

58. On May 15, 2002, CMS finally provided information with respect to its  Around-tr ip@ 

trading practices . In a press  release, CMS s tated in per tinent par t as  follows: 

CMS Energy Corporation today repor ted the preliminary results  of an 

internal review indicating its  energy marketing unit, CMS Marketing, 

Services  and Trading (CMS-MST), entered into "round tr ip" electr icity 

trades  involving s imultaneous  purchases  and sales  with the same 

counter -parties  at the same price from May 2000  through mid-January 

2002.  Thir teen of the trades  accounted for  about 98 percent of the 

volume. All such CMS trades  were with either  Dynegy Power  

Marketing, Inc. or  Reliant Energy Services , Inc. These s imultaneous  

transactions , in which electr icity was  sold and re-purchased without 

profit, loss  or  cash flow impact to CMS Energy, had the effect of 

increas ing trading volumes.  

 

After  internally concluding that the cessation of such trades  was  in the 

Company's  bes t interes ts , CMS s topped such trades  in January 2002.  

 

CMS-MST has  not par ticipated in any electr icity trading in California's  

energy market, accordingly none of the round tr ip trades  involved 

California.  

 

CMS Energy  decide d afte r  the  third quar ter  of 2 0 0 1 that  not  

r e cor d ing  the s e  t r ade s  in e i the r  r e v e nue  or  e xpe ns e  w as  a  

m or e  appr opr ia te  r e pr e s e ntat ion of the  natur e  of the s e  

t r ans act ions . 

 

The r e for e ,  no r e v e nue  or  e xpe ns e  w as  r e cor de d  in i t s  

financial  s ta tem ents  in the  four th quar ter  of 2 0 0 1 from  s uch 

t r ade s . Re v e nue  and  e xpe ns e  w e r e  r e -s tated for  the firs t three 

quar te r s  of 2 0 0 1 to e lim inate  $ 3 .4  bil l ion of prev ious ly  
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r epor ted  r ev enue  and expens e . The  Com pany 's  Annual Repor t  

on Form  10 -K for  2 0 0 1,  is s ued in March,  r e flects  only  $ 5  

m il l ion r e v e nue  and e xpe ns e  fr om  s uch t r ade s ,  w hich w as  

inadv er tent ly  included. For  2 0 0 0 ,  thes e  t r ades  r epr es ented  

$ 1.0  bi l l ion of r e v e nue  and e xpe ns e . The  t r ade s  had no e ffe ct  

on the  Com pany 's  e ar nings ,  cas h flow  or  balance  s he e t  for  

2 0 0 1 or  2 0 0 0 .  
 

CMS= internal review found that these trades  included 79 .3  million 

megawatt-hours  in 2001 and 29.6 million megawatt-hours in 2000. With 

these trades  subtracted, electr ic trading volumes for  2001 totaled 31 

million megawatt-hours  and for  2000  totaled 8.3 million megawatt-

hours . 

 

59. A Reuters= ar ticle dated May 15, 2002, titled ACMS admits  to $4.4 bln worth of bogus  

power  trades@ provided additional information. The ar ticle s tated in per tinent par t as  follows : 

CMS Energy Corp. on Wednesday said it entered into bogus  electr icity 

trades  that inflated revenues  and expenses  by $4.4 billion over  18 

months  in an attempt to become a leading energy trader . 

 

Dearborn, MichiganCbased CMS said it s topped "wash" trades, in which 

traders  buy and resell electr icity without profit or  loss , in mid-January. 

The company said an internal review found the bogus trades  accounted 

for  near ly 80  percent of electr icity traded in 2001, and more than 70  

percent the year  before.  

 

The company also said it res tated revenues and expenses  downward by 

$3.4 billion for  the firs t three quar ters  of 2001, which was  reflected in 

its  annual filing done in March.  

 

The disclosure of "wash" trades  by CMS and other  traders  has  

increased inves tor  disenchantment with the power  sector , which has  

been hit hard by ques tions  about accounting and hidden debt s ince 

Enron Corp.'s  demise las t year .  

 

"Companies  were gear ing for  pos itions  in the trading ranks  and this  is  

one of the ways they went about it," said Jeff Gilders leeve, an analyst at 

Argus  Research.  

 

He added, "It was always suspected that energy companies  had quite a 
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bit of leeway in their  accounting, especially in the energy trading arena 

and cer tain companies  were more aggress ive than others ." 

* * * 
CMS said it did 13 trades , which accounted for  98 percent of the 

company's  volume, from May 2000  until mid-January. All the trades  

were done with units  of Dynegy Inc. and CMS Inc. 

* * * 

CMS said the bogus  trades  had no effect on its  earnings , cash flow or  

balance sheet for  2001 or  2000 .  

 

CMS said after  the third quar ter  of 2001 it decided not to record 

revenue or  expense for  these trades , as  that would more appropr iately 

reflect the nature of the transactions .  

 

Analysts  and a former U.S. Securities  and Exchange Commission official 

have said s ince the trades  were not conducted to make a profit, but 

rather  for  painting a better  financial picture, they suggest at leas t some 

impropriety.  

 

CMS said even after  the res tatement, its  2001 results  "inadver tently" 

include $5 million of revenue and expense from "wash" trades . The 

trades  represented $1 billion of revenue and expense in 20 0 0 , but no 

decis ion has  been made on whether  to res tate results  for  that year , the 

CMS spokesman said.  

 

The res tatement shows that "it became more evident as  time went on 

that this  sor t of aggress ive accounting practice would be looked at 

unfavorably," Gilders leeve said.  

 

"I think all companies  were fair ly aggress ive and that's  changed 

dras tically over  the past several months ."  

 

Las t week, CMS said federal regulators  asked it to provide information 

for  an informal inquiry into wash trades . Also las t week, The Wall 

Street Journal repor ted the Secur ities  and Exchange  Commiss ion was  

looking into bogus  trades  between CMS and Dynegy Inc. valued at $1.7 

billion.  

 

CMS said it was  cooperating with the inquiry by the SEC as  well as  

another  inquiry by the Commodity Futures  Trading Commiss ion. 
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60. Another  Reuters  ar ticle dated May 15, 2002, titled AFor  accountants  it=s  clear , wash 

trades  are illegal@ provided additional detail with respect to CMS= trading practices. The article s tated in 

per tinent par t as  follows: 

The bogus  trades  that have the likes  of energy traders  Dynegy Inc. and 

CMS Energy Corp. in hot water  didn't jus t push the envelope of 

accounting laws, they were outr ight illegal, accounting exper ts  say. 

 

The disclosure of round-tr ip or  "wash" trades , the buying and reselling 

of a commodity to boost revenue and trading volume without financial 

r isk, has  shocked inves tors  s till smar ting from the demise of Enron 

Corp. 

 

"Recor ding  r ev enues  fr om  r ound-tr ip  t rades  w ould be  a  

s pecie s  of fr aud becaus e  they 'r e  ov e r s ta t ing  r ev enues ," s a id  

Rober t  W axm an,  a  for m er  par tner  a t  De loi t te  & Touche ,  w ho 

heads  up his  ow n account ing  fir m  now . 

 

In the lates t revelation of round-tr ip trading, CMS Energy Corp. on 

Wednesday said it inflated revenues  and expenses  by $4.4 billion over  

18 months  in an attempt to become a leading energy trader . 

 

Few deny the practice is  unethical, but its  legality in the largely 

deregulated wor ld of wholesale power  trading is  unclear . Over-the-

counter  trading was specifically exempted from regulation by Congress  

under  the Commodity Futures  Modernization Act of December  2000 . 

 

Muddying matters  fur ther  is  that there are no accounting rules  that 

specifically prohibit companies from puffing up revenues from the wash 

trade jamboree. Some analys ts  have even said wash trades  were of no 

great consequence, as  they did not change a company's  bottom line. 

 

Account ing  exper ts ,  how ev er ,  s a id  the  i l legali ty  of w as h 

trading  boils  dow n to the  bas ic  tene t  of financial  r epor t ing: 

You don't  book  r e v e nue  fr om  a  s a le  that  lack s  s ubs tance . 

 

A s ubs tant iv e  s ale  w ould  hav e  to t r ans fe r  a t  leas t  s om e  

be ne fi t  or  r is k  -- of a  drop in pr ice s ,  for  exam ple  -- be tw e e n 

the  par t ie s  t rading ,  s aid  W axm an, w ho is  a ls o a  m em ber  of 

the  New  York  State  Socie ty  of Cer t ified  Public  Accountants . 

 

"It 's  pre t ty  m uch a m at te r  of com m on s ens e ," s aid  Jack  

Cie s ie ls k i ,  an accountant  w ho publis he s  the  w ide ly  r e ad  

Analy s t 's  Account ing  Obs erv er . "If the  trans act ion lack s  any  

s ubs tance ,  w hy  w ould  y ou r ecord i t?" 
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MATERIALLY MISSTATING STATEMENTS 

 

The Financial Accounting Standards  Board, the accounting body that 

sets  accounting rules  in the United States , and probably the ultimate 

author ity on the issue, seems to agree. 

 

"It  w ould  s e e m  unjus t i fie d  to book  r e v e nue ," s a id  She r i  

Thom ps on,  a  s pok es w om an for  FASB. "If y ou hav e  an 

arrangem ent or  a prearrangem ent in place  w ith another  par ty ,  

w he r e  y ou'r e  going  to be  s e l l ing  s om e thing  and the n buy ing 

that  s am e  thing  back  and ther e 's  an agr eed upon pr ice  

be tw een the  par t ie s  w here  y ou're  creat ing es s ent ially  a  w as h, 

i t 's  r eally  not  a  s ubs tant iv e  t rans act ion." 

 

In any case, companies  aren't supposed to knowingly engage in 

"conduct that materially misstates  financial s tatements ," as  proclaimed 

by the Securities  Exchange Act of 1934, Waxman said. 

 

That act addresses  the financial repor ting requirements  of public 

companies . 

 

CMS acknowledged the wash trades  it entered into were not in the 

company's  bes t interes ts , and s topped such trading in January. 

 

FALS E FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS  

61. In order  to falsely s tate revenues  dur ing the Class  Per iod, Defendants  caused CMS to 

violate GAAP and SEC rules  by including approximately $4.4 billion of revenues  in financial s tatements 

from transactions  that lacked any economic substance in order  to manipulate the market and investors  

into thinking that CMS was becoming a s ignificant, if not a major , player  in the power  marketing 

industry. Defendants = failure to proper ly account for  the Around-tr ip@ trading contracts  caused CMS to 

record more than $4.4 billion of revenues  that lacked any economic subs tance throughout the Class  

Per iod, and, therefore, miss tated CMS= r evenues  throughout the Class  Per iod. 

62. CMS has  admitted that its  financial s tatements , including Annual Reports  on Form 10-K 

and Quar ter ly Reports  on Form 10-Qs contained revenues  from round-tr ip trading.  

63. CMS included its  false and incorrect financial s tatements  and results  in pres s  r eleases  

and in SEC filings , including the Annual Repor ts  on Form 10 -K and Quar ter ly Repor ts  on Form 10-Qs for 
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2000  and 2001. These SEC filings  represented that the financial information presented therein was  a 

fair  s tatement of CMS= financial results  and that the results  were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

64. These representations  were false and mis leading as  to the financial information 

repor ted, as  such financial information was  not prepared in conformity with GAAP, nor  was  the 

financial information a Afair  representation@ of CMS= operations  due to the Company=s  improper  

accounting for  $4.4 billion of revenues  recognized from Around-tr ip@ trades  with Dynegy and Reliant, 

caus ing the financial results  to be presented in violation of GAAP and SEC rules . 

65. Regulation S-X [17 C.F.R. Sec.210 .4-01(a)(1)] s tates  that financial s tatements  filed with the 

SEC which are not prepared in compliance with GAAP are presumed to be mis leading and inaccurate. 

Regula tion S-X requires  that inter im financial s tatements  must also comply with GAAP, with the 

exception that inter im financial s tatements  need not include disclosure that would be duplicative of 

disclosures  accompanying annual financial s tatements .  

66. Due to these accounting impropr ieties , CMS presented its  financial results  in a manner  

which violated GAAP, including the following fundamental accounting pr inciples :  

(a) The pr inciple that inter im financial repor ting should be based upon the same accounting 

pr inciples  and practices  used to prepare annual financial s tatements  was  violated (APB No. 20 , para. 

10 ); 

(b) The pr incipal that financial repor ting should provide information that is  useful to 

present and potential investors  and creditors  and other  users  in making rational investment, credit and 

s imilar  decis ions  was  violated (FASB Statement of Concepts  No. 1, para. 34); 

(c) The pr incipal that financial repor ting should provide information about the economic 

resources  of an enterpr ise, the claims  to those resources , and effects  of transactions , events  and 

circumstances  that change resources  and claims to those resources  was  violated (FASB Statement of 

Concepts  No. 1, para. 40 ); 



 

 27 

(d) The pr inciple that financial repor ting should provide information about how management of 

an enterpr ise has  discharged its  s tewardship respons ibility to owners  (s tockholders ) for  the use of 

enterpr ise resources  entrus ted to it was  violated. To the extent that management offers securities of the 

enterpr ise to the public, it voluntar ily accepts  wider  responsibilities  for  accountability to prospective 

inves tors  and the public in general (FASB Statements  of Concepts  No. 1, para. 50 ); 

(e) The pr inciple that financial repor ting should provide information about an enterpr ise=s  

financial performance dur ing a per iod was violated. Investors  and creditors  often use information about 

the pas t to help in assess ing the prospects  of an enterpr ise. Thus , although inves tment and credit 

decis ions  reflect inves tors= expectations  about future enterpr ise per formance, those expectations  are 

commonly based at leas t par tly on evaluations  of pas t enterpr ise performance (FASB Statement of 

Concepts  No. 1, para. 42); 

(f) The pr inciple that financial repor ting should be reliable in that it represents  what it purpor ts  

to represent was  violated. That information should be reliable as  well as  relevant is  a notion that is  

central to accounting (FASB Statement of Concepts  No. 2, paras . 58-59); 

(g) The pr inciple of completeness , which means  that nothing is  left out of the information that 

may be necessary to insure that it validly represents  under lying events  and conditions  was  violated 

(FASB Statement of Concepts  No. 2 , para. 79); and 

(h) The pr inciple that conservatism be used as  a prudent reaction to uncer tainty to try to ensure 

that uncer tainties  and r isks  inherent in bus iness  s ituations  are adequately cons idered was  violated. 

The bes t way to avoid injury to inves tors  is  to try to ensure that what is  repor ted represents  

what it purpor ts  to represent (FASB Statement of Concepts  No. 2 , paras . 95, 97). 

67. Fur ther , the undisclosed adverse information concealed by Defendants during the Class 

Per iod is  the type of information which because of SEC regulations , regulations  of the national s tock 

exchanges  and cus tomary business  practices , is  expected by inves tors  and secur ities  analys ts  to be 
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disclosed and is  known by corporate officials  and their  legal and financial advisors  to be the type of 

information which is  expected to be and must be disclosed. 

68. The market for  CMS=a secur ities  was  open, well-developed and efficient at all r elevant 

times . As a result of these mater ially false and mis leading s tatements  and failures  to disclose, CMS= 

common s tock traded at ar tificially inflated pr ices  dur ing the Class  Per iod. Plaintiff and other  members  

of the Class  purchased or  otherwise acquired CMS secur ities  relying upon the integr ity of the market 

price of CMS= secur ities  and market information relating to CMS, and have been damaged thereby. 

69. During the Class  Per iod,  Defendants  mater ially mis led the investing public, thereby 

inflating the pr ice of CMS= common s tock, by publicly issuing false and misleading s tatements  and 

omitting to disclose mater ial facts  necessary to make defendant=s  s tatements , as  set for th herein, not 

false and mis leading. Said s tatements  and omiss ions  were mater ially false and mis leading in that they 

failed to disclose mater ial adverse information and misrepresented the truth about the Company, its  

bus iness  and operations , as  alleged herein. 

70 . At all relevant times , the mater ial misrepresentations  and omiss ions  par ticular ized in 

this  Complaint directly or  proximately caused or  were a substantial contr ibuting cause of the damages  

sus tained by plaintiff and other  members  of the Class . As  descr ibed herein, dur ing the Class  Per iod, 

defendants  made or  caused to be made a ser ies  of mater ially false or  misleading s tatements  about CMS= 

bus iness , prospects  and operations . These mater ial miss tatements  and omiss ions  had the cause and 

effect of creating in the market an unrealis tically pos itive assessment of CMS and its  bus iness , 

prospects  and operations , thus  caus ing the Company=s  secur ities  to be overvalued and ar tificially 

inflated at all relevant times. 

71.  Defendants = materially false and misleading statements during the Class Period resulted 

in Plaintiff and other  members  of the Class  purchas ing the Company=s  secur ities  at ar tificially inflated 

pr ices , thus  causing the damages  complained of herein. 
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Additiona l  Scie nte r  Alle g a tions  

72. As alleged herein, Defendants  acted with scienter in that Defendants  knew that the 

public documents  and s tatements  issued or  disseminated in the name of the Company were mater ially 

false and mis leading; knew that such s tatements  or  documents  would be issued or  acquiesced in the 

is suance or  dis semination of such s tatements  or  documents  as  pr imary violations  of the federal 

secur ities  laws . As  set for th elsewhere herein in detail, Defendants , by vir tue of their  receipt of 

information reflecting the true facts  regarding CMS, their  control over , and/ or  receipt and/ or  receipt of 

information of CMS= allegedly mater ially mis leading miss tatements  and/ or  his  associations  with the 

Company which made him pr ivy to confidential proprietary information concerning CMS, par ticipated in 

the fraudulent scheme alleged herein. 

Applica bi l i ty  Of Pre s u m ption  Of Re l ia nce : 

Fra u d-On -Th e -Ma rk e t Doc trin e  

 

73. At all relevant times, the market for  CMS= secur ities  was  an efficient market for  the 

following reasons , among others : 

(a) CMS common s tock met the requirements  for  lis ting, and was  lis ted and actively traded on 

the NYSE, a highly efficient and automated market; 

(b) As  a regulated issuer , NYSE filed per iodic public repor ts  with the SEC and the NYSE; 

(c) CMS regular ly communicated with public investors  via es tablished market communication 

mechanisms, including through regular  disseminations  of press  releases  on the national circuits  of 

major  newswire services  and through other  wide -ranging public disclosures , such as  communications  

with the financial press  and other  s imilar  repor ting services ; and 

(d) CMS was followed by several secur ities  analys ts  employed by major  brokerage firms who 

wrote repor ts  which were dis tr ibuted to the sales  force and cer tain cus tomers  of their  respective 

brokerage firms. Each of these repor ts  was  publicly available and entered the public marketplace. 

74. As a result of the foregoing, the market for  CMS secur ities  promptly digested current 
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information regarding CMS from all publicly available sources  and reflected such information in the 

pr ice of CMS s tock. Under  these circumstances , all purchasers  of CMS secur ities  dur ing the Class  

Per iod suffe red similar  injury through their  purchase of CMS securities  at ar tificially inflated prices and 

a presumption of reliance applies . 

NO S AFE HARBOR 

75. The s tatutory safe harbor  provided for  forward-looking s tatements  under  cer tain 

circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false s tatements  pleaded in this  complaint. Many of 

the specific s tatements  pleaded herein were not identified as  "forward-looking s tatements" when made. 

To the extent there were any forward-looking s tatements , there were no meaningful cautionary 

statements  identifying important factors  that could cause actual results  to differ  materially from those in 

the purpor tedly forward-looking s tatements . Alternatively, to the extent that the s tatutory safe harbor  

does  apply to any forward-looking s tatements  pleaded herein, Defendants  are liable for  those false 

forward-looking s tatements  because at the time each of those forward-looking statements was made, the 

par ticular  speaker  knew that the par ticular  forward-looking s tatement was  false, and/ or  the forward-

looking s tatement was author ized and/ or  approved by an executive officer  of CMS who knew that those 

s tatements  were false when made. 

FIRS T CLAIM 

Viola tion  Of S e c tion  10 (b) Of 

The  Exc ha ng e  Ac t Ag a ins t And Ru le  10 b-5  

Prom u lg a te d Th e re u n de r Ag a in s t Al l  De fe n da n ts  

 

76. Plaintiff repeats  and realleges  each and every allegation contained above as  if fully set 

for th herein. 

77. During the Class  Per iod, CMS and the Individual Defendants , and each of them, carr ied 

out a plan, scheme and course of conduct which was  intended to and, throughout the Class  Per iod, did: 

(i) deceive the inves ting public, including Plaintiff and other  Class  members , as  alleged herein; (ii) 

ar tificially inflate and maintain the market pr ice of CMS secur ities ; and (iii) cause Plaintiff and other  
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members  of the Class  to purchase CMS secur ities  at ar tificially inflated pr ices . In fur therance of this  

unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendants , and each of them, took the actions  set for th 

herein. 

78 . Defendants  (a) employed devices , schemes, and ar tifices  to defraud; (b) made untrue 

s tatements  of mater ial fact and/ or  omitted to s tate mater ial facts  necessary to make the s tatements  not 

mis leading; and (c) engaged in acts , practices , and a course of business  which operated as  a fraud and 

deceit upon the purchasers  of the Company's  secur ities  in an effor t to maintain ar tificially high market 

pr ices  for  CMS secur ities  in violation of Section 10 (b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5. All 

Defendants  are sued either  as  pr imary par ticipants  in the wrongful and illegal conduct charged herein 

or  as  controlling persons  as  alleged below. 

79 . In addition to the duties  of full disclosure imposed on Defendants  as  a result of their  

making of affirmative s tatements  and reports , or  par ticipation in the making of affirmative s tatements  

and repor ts  to the investing public, Defendants  had a duty to promptly disseminate truthful information 

that would be mater ial to inves tors  in compliance with the integrated disclosure provis ions  of the SEC 

as  embodied in SEC Regulation S-X (17 C.F.R. Sections  210 .01 et seq.) and Regulation S-K (17 C.F.R. 

Sections  229.10  et seq.) and other  SEC regulations , including accurate and truthful information with 

respect to the Company's  operations , financial condition and earnings  so that the market pr ice of the 

Company's  secur ities  would be based on truthful, complete and accurate information. 

80 .  CMS and the Individual Defendants , individually and in concer t, directly and indirectly, 

by the use, means  or  ins trumentalities  of inters tate commerce and/ or  of the mails , engaged and 

par ticipated in a continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse mater ial information about the 

bus iness , operations  and future prospects  of CMS as  specified herein. 

81.  These Defendants  employed devices , schemes  and ar tifices  to defraud, while in 

possess ion of mater ial adverse non-public information and engaged in acts , practices , and a course of 
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conduct as  alleged herein in an effor t to assure inves tors  of CMS= value and performance and continued 

substantial growth, which included the making of, or  the par ticipation in the making of, untrue 

s tatements  of mater ial facts  and omitting to s tate mater ial facts  necessary in order  to make the 

s tatements  made about CMS and its  bus iness  operations  and future prospects  in the light of the 

circumstances  under  which they were made, not mis leading, as  set for th more par ticular ly herein, and 

engaged in transactions , practices  and a course of bus iness  w hich operated as  a fraud and deceit upon 

the purchasers  of CMS secur ities  dur ing the Class  Per iod. 

82. The Individual Defendants = primary liability, and controlling person liability, arises from 

the following facts : (i) the Individual Defendants  were high -level executives  and/ or  directors  at the 

Company dur ing the Class  Per iod; (ii) the Individual Defendants  were pr ivy to and par ticipated in the 

creation, development and repor ting of the Company's  internal budgets , plans , projections  and/ or  

repor ts ; and (iii) the Individual Defendants  were aware of the Company's dissemination of information to 

the inves ting public which they knew or  reckless ly disregarded was  mater ially false and mis leading. 

83. The Defendants  had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations  and omiss ions  of 

mater ial facts  set for th herein, or  acted with reckless  disregard for  the truth in that they failed to 

ascer tain and to disclose such facts , even though such facts  were available to them. Such Defendants ' 

material misrepresentations  and/ or  omiss ions  were done knowingly or  reckless ly and for  the purpose 

and effect of concealing CMS= operating condition and future bus iness  prospects  from the inves ting 

public and supporting the ar tificially inflated pr ice of its  secur ities . As demonstrated by Defendants ' 

overs tatements  and miss tatements  of the Company's  bus iness , operations  and earnings  throughout the 

Class  Per iod, Defendants , if they did not have actual knowledge of the misrepresentations  and 

omiss ions  alleged, were reckless  in failing to obtain such knowledge by deliberately refraining from 

taking those s teps  necessary to discover  whether  those s tatements  were false or  mis leading. 

84. As a result of the dissemination of the mater ially false and misleading information and 
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failure to disclose mater ial facts , as  set for th above, the market pr ice of CMS secur ities  was  ar tificially 

inflated dur ing the Class  Per iod. In ignorance of the fact that market pr ices  of CMS publicly-traded 

secur ities  were ar tificially inflated, and relying directly or  indirectly on the false and mis leading 

s tatements  made by Defendants , or  upon the integr ity of the market in which the secur ities  trade, 

and/ or  on the absence of mater ial adverse information that was known to or  reckless ly disregarded by 

Defendants  but not disclosed in public s tatements  by Defendants  dur ing the Class  Per iod, Plaintiff and 

the other  members  of the Class  acquired CMS secur ities  dur ing the Class  Per iod at ar tificially high  

pr ices  and were damaged thereby. 

85. At the time of said misrepresentations and omissions, Plaintiff and other  members of the 

Class  were ignorant of their  fals ity, and believed them to be true. Had Plaintiff and the other  members  

of the Class  and the marketplace known of the true financial condition and bus iness  prospects  of CMS, 

which were not disclosed by Defendants , Plaintiff and other  members  of the Class  would not have 

purchased or  otherwise acquired their  CMS secur ities , or , if they had acquired such secur ities  dur ing 

the Class  Per iod, they would not have done so at the ar tificially inflated pr ices  which they paid. 

86. By vir tue of the foregoing, Defendants  have violated Section 10 (b) of the Exchange Act, 

and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder .  

87.  As  a direct and proximate result of Defendants ' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and the other 

members  of the Class  suffered damages  in connection with their  respective purchases  and sales  of the 

Company's  secur ities  dur ing the Class  Per iod. 

S ECOND CLAIM 

Viola tion  Of S e c tion  2 0 (a ) Of 

The  Exc h a ng e  Ac t Ag a ins t the  Indiv idu a l  De fe nda nts  

 

88. Plaintiff repeats  and realleges  each and every allegation contained above as  if fully set 

for th herein. 

89. The Individual Defendants  acted as  a controlling person of CMS within the meaning of 
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Section 20 (a) of the Exchange Act as  alleged herein. By vir tue of his  high -level pos itions , and his  

ownership and contractual r ights , par ticipation in and/ or  awareness  of the Company's  operations  

and/ or  intimate knowledge of the s tatements  filed by the Company with the SEC and disseminated to the 

inves ting public, the Individual Defendants  had the power  to influence and control and did influence and 

control, directly or  indirectly, the decis ion-making of the Company, including the content and 

dissemination of the var ious  s tatements  which Plaintiff contends  are false and mis leading. The 

Individual Defendants  were provided with or  had unlimited access  to copies  of the Company's  repor ts , 

press  releases , public filings  and other  s tatements  alleged by Plaintiff to be mis leading pr ior  to and/ or  

shor tly after  these s tatements  were issued and had the ability to prevent the issuance of the s tatements  

or  cause the s tatements  to be corrected. 

90. In par ticular , the Individual Defendants  had direct and supervisory involvement in the 

day-to-day operations  of the Company and, therefore, are presumed to have had the power  to control or  

influence the par ticular  transactions  giving r ise to the secur ities  violations  as  alleged herein, and 

exercised the same. 

91. As set for th above, CMS and the Individual Defendants  each violated Section 10 (b) and 

Rule 10b-5 by their  acts  and omiss ions  as  alleged in this  Complaint. By vir tue of their  pos ition each as  

a controlling person, the Individual Defendants  are liable pursuant to Section 20 (a) of the Exch ange Act. 

As a direct and proximate result of CMS= and the Individual Defendants = wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and 

other  members  of the Class  suffered damages  in connection with their  purchases  of the Company's  

secur ities  dur ing the Class  Per iod. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays  for  relief and judgment, as  follows: 

(a) Determining that this  action is  a proper  class  action, des ignating Plaintiff as  Lead Plaintiff 

and cer tifying Plaintiff as  a class  representative under  Rule 23  of the Federal Rules  of Civil Procedure 

and Plaintiff's  counsel as  Lead Counsel; 
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(b) Awarding compensatory damages  in favor  of Plaintiff and the other  Class  members  against 

all Defendants , jointly and severally, for  all damages  sus tained as  a result of Defendants ' wrongdoing, 

in an amount to be proven at tr ial, including interes t thereon; 

(c) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class  their  reasonable costs  and expenses  incurred in this  action, 

including counsel fees  and exper t fees ; and 

(d) Such other  and fur ther  relief as  the Cour t may deem jus t and proper . 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiff hereby demands a tr ial by jury. 

Dated: May ___, 2002 

 

MANTES E MILLER AND S HEA,  P.L.L.C. 

 

 

By:______________________________ 
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